Synopsis



Assessing the impact of COVID-19 on the physical activity of 10-11year-old children and their parents: Active-6 a mixed-methods study

Russell Jago,^{1,2,3*} Danielle House,¹ Ruth Salway,¹ Robert Walker,¹ Lydia Emm-Collison,¹ Kate Sansum,¹ Katie Breheny,^{2,3} Sarah Churchward,⁴ Joanna G Williams,^{2,5} William Hollingworth^{2,3} and Frank de Vocht^{2,3}

¹Centre for Exercise, Nutrition & Health Sciences, School for Policy Studies, University of Bristol, Bristol, UK ²Population Health Sciences, Bristol Medical School, University of Bristol, Bristol, UK

³The National Institute for Health Research, Applied Research Collaboration West (NIHR ARC West), University Hospitals Bristol and Weston NHS Foundation Trust, Bristol, UK

⁴Independent Public Member of the Project Team

⁵Communities and Public Health, Bristol City Council, Bristol, UK

*Corresponding author russ.jago@bristol.ac.uk

Published November 2024 DOI: 10.3310/WYHT5821

Plain language summary

Assessing the impact of COVID-19 on the physical activity of 10–11-year-old children and their parents: Active-6 a mixed-methods study Public Health Research 2024; Vol. 12: No. 16 DOI: 10.3310/WYHT5821

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

This synopsis should be referenced as follows: Jago R, House D, Salway R, Walker R, Emm-Collison L, Sansum K, et al. Assessing the impact of COVID-19 on the physical activity of 10–11-year-old children and their parents: Active-6 a mixed-methods study. Public Health Res 2024;12(16):1-29. https://doi.org/10.3310/WYHT5821

Plain language summary

Why did we do this study?

Physical activity can improve children's health, learning and quality of life, yet only 41% of year 6 children (aged 10–11 years) in the UK were meeting physical activity guidelines before the pandemic. COVID-19 lockdowns and restrictions meant children were unable to be active in their normal ways. We expected these restrictions to reduce children's activity while they were in place. The Active-6 project wanted to know whether any changes to children's activity lasted after the restrictions had gone.

What did we do?

We used devices called accelerometers to measure Year 6 children's activity in 2021 and 2022. We compared this information with data collected in 2017/18 from year 6 children from the same schools. We also interviewed parents, children and school staff to find out about their experiences and why they felt any changes had happened.

What did we find?

In 2021, children's activity was significantly lower than before the pandemic. The time children spent sedentary, not moving at all, was higher. By 2022, child activity returned to pre-COVID levels but their sedentary time remained high. We found that the ways in which children are active have changed since the COVID-19 lockdowns. Children spend less time doing active play and now rely more on structured activities like sports clubs. The gap in how active children are seems to be widening, with girls and low-income families being less active.

What does this mean for child physical activity?

It took almost a year with no restrictions for children's physical activity to recover, and sedentary time remains high. Despite this recovery, 59% of children do not meet activity guidelines. Children now rely more on clubs for their activity, and it is hard for some children and families to take part in these. Strategies are needed to increase child physical activity for all.

Public Health Research

ISSN 2050-439X (Online)

A list of Journals Library editors can be found on the NIHR Journals Library website

Public Health Research (PHR) was launched in 2013 and is indexed by Europe PMC, NCBI Bookshelf, DOAJ, INAHTA, Ulrichsweb[™] (ProQuest LLC, Ann Arbor, MI, USA) and MEDLINE.

This journal is a member of and subscribes to the principles of the Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) (www.publicationethics.org/).

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk

The full PHR archive is freely available to view online at www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/phr.

Criteria for inclusion in the Public Health Research journal

Manuscripts are published in *Public Health Research* (PHR) if (1) they have resulted from work for the PHR programme, and (2) they are of a sufficiently high scientific quality as assessed by the reviewers and editors.

Reviews in *Public Health Research* are termed 'systematic' when the account of the search appraisal and synthesis methods (to minimise biases and random errors) would, in theory, permit the replication of the review by others.

PHR programme

The Public Health Research (PHR) programme, part of the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR), is the leading UK funder of public health research, evaluating public health interventions, providing new knowledge on the benefits, costs, acceptability and wider impacts of non-NHS interventions intended to improve the health of the public and reduce inequalities in health. The scope of the programme is multi-disciplinary and broad, covering a range of interventions that improve public health.

For more information about the PHR programme please visit the website: https://www.nihr.ac.uk/explore-nihr/funding-programmes/public-health-research.htm

This article

The research reported in this issue of the journal was funded by the PHR programme as award number NIHR131847. The contractual start date was in April 2021. The draft manuscript began editorial review in June 2023 and was accepted for publication in March 2024. The authors have been wholly responsible for all data collection, analysis and interpretation, and for writing up their work. The PHR editors and production house have tried to ensure the accuracy of the authors' manuscript and would like to thank the reviewers for their constructive comments on the draft document. However, they do not accept liability for damages or losses arising from material published in this article.

This article presents independent research funded by the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR). The views and opinions expressed by authors in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, the NIHR, the PHR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care. If there are verbatim quotations included in this publication the views and opinions expressed by the interviewees are those of the interviewees and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, these of the authors, those of the NHS, the NIHR, the PHR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care.

This article was published based on current knowledge at the time and date of publication. NIHR is committed to being inclusive and will continually monitor best practice and guidance in relation to terminology and language to ensure that we remain relevant to our stakeholders.

Copyright © 2024 Jago *et al.* This work was produced by Jago *et al.* under the terms of a commissioning contract issued by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. This is an Open Access publication distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution CC BY 4.0 licence, which permits unrestricted use, distribution, reproduction and adaptation in any medium and for any purpose provided that it is properly attributed. See: https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/. For attribution the title, original author(s), the publication source – NIHR Journals Library, and the DOI of the publication must be cited.

Published by the NIHR Journals Library (www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk), produced by Newgen Digitalworks Pvt Ltd, Chennai, India (www.newgen.co).